
AMENDMENT #2: 2022-11023A, REGIONAL SUB-SAHARAN AFRICA: ZIPLINE 
AERIAL HEALTH AND DISTRIBUTION SERVICE EXPANSION FEASIBILITY 
STUDY 
 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Feasibility Study for the Zipline Aerial 
Health and Distribution Service Expansion is amended, as follows: 
 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications:  This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet.  Responses to submitted 
questions are attached. 
 
Question Answer 
Are the expansion sites referred to in Task 
2 the states/regions OR the particular 
communities/local government areas/districts 
where the hubs will be sited? This is 
important as it influences the type of 
stakeholders engaged at different levels. 

The states/regions mentioned in Task 2 refer 
to States in Nigeria, and regions in Ghana. Per 
the terms of reference, the exact 
methodologies to be employed, geographic 
sites to be considered, and the final set of 
expansion sites shall be determined in 
consultation with the Client.  
 

Is the expectation that ALL 10 expansion sites 
will be in different states/regions? Or are 
there plans to have multiple expansion sites in 
a singular state/region?  

Per the terms of reference, a minimum of ten 
(10) expansion sites would be identified. The 
expansion sites will be selected on the basis 
of the market analysis undertaken using the 
factors outlined in Task 2. This could be in 
the same region (in Ghana) or state (in 
Nigeria).  

Are the expansion sites described in Task 
6 different from the expansion sites referred 
to in Task 2? That is, are the expansion sites 
referred to in Task 2, the states/regions, 
whereas those referred to in Task 6, 
the particular communities/local government 
areas/ districts? Please clarify. 

Per the terms of reference, the client and 
contractor shall review the initially identified 
minimum of 10 sites in Task 2 and determine 
if any of the proposed 10 sites identified in 
Tasks 1 to 5 should be down-selected before 
proceeding with Task 6.  

If the expansion sites where the 10 hubs will 
be located in Task 6 are down-selected, will a 
new expansion site be selected to fill that 
void? If the answer is YES, is the expectation 
that only Task 6 will be repeated to select the 
new expansion site OR is the expectation that 
other Tasks will be repeated?  

Per the Terms of reference, 10 viable sites 
would be identified for Task 6. If some of the 
sites identified for Task 6 are unviable, the 
expectation is that additional sites would be 
identified to ensure that the goal of 10 viable 
sites for Task 6 is met. 
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In Task 1, can we recommend a hybrid 
meeting for the kickoff meeting, as some 
personnel from the government agencies 
invited may not be able to join virtually? 

Per the terms of reference, the contractor shall 
organize the Kickoff call with the client. A 
hybrid meeting can be convened by the 
contractor in consultation with the client, and 
the contractor would likely bear any 
additional expenses associated with 
convening an in-person meeting.  

Is there a desired/intended start date for the 
contract? 

After the Client selects a U.S. contractor, 
USTDA approves the U.S. contractor 
selection by issuing a “no objection” letter. 
The client and selected U.S. contract submit a 
fully negotiated and unsigned work contract 
for USTDA’s review. Once the work contract 
is approved for signing by USTDA, the 
project sponsor and U.S. firm may sign the 
work contract, thereby allowing the USTDA-
funded work to commence. 

Is there a desired period of performance for 
the overall assessment, or for any subtasks, 
based on funding or other decision 
milestones?  The “definitional mission report” 
seems to indicate a period of performance of 
“no less than 24 months”, yet this timeframe 
is not reflected in the actual Terms of 
Reference of the RFP. 

Per task 1, subtask 1.1, the contractor and the 
client, during the kick off meeting shall agree 
on the timing of key milestones for the 
development of the study and the project. The 
period of performance in the definitional 
mission is an estimate based on similar work 
performed.  

Beyond providing budget/invoice amounts 
per deliverable, what level of cost estimates 
should be included to break down anticipated 
staff resource costs, travel expenses, and other 
expenses? 

Invoicing and disbursement guidelines are 
outlined in Clause G, Annex II Mandatory 
contract clauses. Per Clause G4(a), the 
invoice from the contractor shall include 
reference to the applicable deliverables or 
other performance milestones listed in the 
contract payment schedule. 

Section 2.23 of the request for proposals 
states that “The successful Offeror shall be 
required to (a) provide local transportation, 
office space and secretarial support required 
to perform the TOR if such support is not 
provided by the Grantee.” 

a. Can USTDA clarify what logistics, 
workspace, and administrative support 
Zipline has available in Nigeria and/or 
Ghana to support the Offeror in 
executing this award? 

Per Task 1 of the Terms of reference, the 
contractor shall organize a kick off meeting 
that would include the development of a work 
plan (task 1.2). This work plan shall include a 
schedule of tasks and key resources to be 
deployed. The client will provide clarification 
of the resources available, including logistics, 
workspace and administrative support in 
Ghana and Nigeria. 

Section 3 of the request for proposals 
indicates that the length of the Executive 
Summary should be no more than five (5) 

USTDA does not have a page limit for the 
"Technical Approach and Work Plan" 



pages. Does USTDA have a requested page 
limit for the “Technical Approach and Work 
Plan”? 
Both Section 3.4 and Section 3.6 request key 
personnel CVs and letters of commitment.  
Would it be ok to summarize team member 
experience in these sections and include a 
single Appendix that includes the CVs and 
letters of commitment for relevant team 
members and subcontractors? 

Per section 3.4 of the RFP, a listing of 
personnel (including U.S. and local 
subcontractors) to be engaged in the project is 
required, with curriculum vitae of key staff 
included. Per section 3.6, note that the 
required information is the experience and 
qualifications of the offeror/firm. Clause 3.6 
also requests verifiable project references. 

Section 3.5 for the request for proposals 
states, “Detail the amount of staff time 
required by the Grantee or other participating 
agencies and any workspace or facilities 
needed to complete the feasibility study.” 

a. Can USTDA confirm whether 
Zipline’s expectation is for the Offeror 
to work on-site at specific 
performance milestones? If so, which 
ones? 

b. Can USTDA provide a list of “other 
participating agencies” anticipated to 
be involved in the feasibility study? 

a. Per subtask 1.2 of the Terms of 
Reference, the contractor shall 
develop and deliver to the client a 
draft work plan. The work plan will 
define the methodology to be 
employed to achieve each task and 
include a description of how the 
contractor intends to collect required 
information. It will also include 
anticipated travel requirements, dates, 
and cost estimates. 

b. Per the project description in appendix 
2 of the RFP, the client currently has a 
contract with the ministry of health in 
Ghana and is interested to expand its 
service offerings to e-commerce, 
courier and agricultural services. 

On the cover page, the submission deadline is 
listed as 13:00 ET and 17:00 GMT which do 
not align. If 17:00 GMT governs, then please 
confirm if the submission deadline is 
12:00ET/17:00 GMT? 

The submission deadline is 12:00 ET/17:00 
GMT to account for daylight savings time 

Does Zipline have an ingoing hypothesis on 
the desired balance of the 10 new Hub sites 
across Nigeria and Ghana? 

Per task 6 of the Terms of Reference, the 
client's ultimate target is to identify ten (10) 
viable project sites 

Extension - As a number of resources were 
out during the Thanksgiving week holiday, 
we request a 2-week proposal submission 
extension to Friday December 23rd 

Unfortunately, we are unable to extend the 
deadline as the client needs to allow enough 
time to evaluate proposals and select a 
contractor before the year ends considering 
the upcoming Christmas holidays. 

Accelerated Timeline – The Period of 
Performance (PoP) states the Activity is to 
run for 24 months. Is Zipline open to a 
proposal that would accelerate that timeline to 
12 to 14 months? Or are there specific drivers 

Per task 1, subtask 1.1, the contractor and the 
client, during the kick off meeting shall agree 
on the timing of key milestones for the 
development of the study and the project. The 
period of performance in the definitional 



that make Zipline believe the Project needs to 
be performed over a 24 month period? If there 
are specific drivers, please describe them. 

mission is an estimate based on similar work 
performed. 

Preferred Subcontractors  - Page 19 of the 
RFP contains the sentence “We further 
recommend the inclusion of the Client’s 
preferred/identified subcontractors in RFP 
materials, given the high degree of 
complexity of the Study and the niche 
capabilities of specific U.S. and African 
partners already identified.” Please provide a 
list of the preferred / identified subcontractors 
and the scope of their relationship with 
Zipline 

The client does not have preferred 
subcontractors at this time 

Can they provide us with list of preferred 
subcontractors and which tasks? 

The client does not have preferred 
subcontractors at this time 

Who are the contacts for MIT Digital Twin? Contacts for Digital Twin are not available at 
this stage 

There is a 20% clause for subcontractors 
outside US. Since we have two locations, 
does this % change or the 20% will be for 
both locations? (Ghana and Nigeria) 

Per USTDA Nationality, Source and Origin 
requirements, up to twenty percent (20%) of  
the total Grant Funds may be used to pay for 
work performed in connection with the 
Activity by: 
(i) Subcontractors that are organized as legal 
entities under the laws of the Host Country;  
and 
(ii) natural persons working as employees of 
the Contractor, as employees of any Host  
Country Subcontractor or as direct 
Subcontractors, in each case, who are either 
(a) citizens of the Host Country, or (b) non-
Host Country citizens lawfully admitted for  
work and/or permanent residence in the Host 
Country; 
(D) a Host Country Subcontractor may only 
be used for specific services from the Terms 
of  
Reference identified in the Subcontract; 
(E) no part of the Grant Funds disbursed in 
connection with the performance of the 
Activity may  
be used to pay (i) any legal entity that is 
incorporated or organized under the laws of a 
jurisdiction  



other than one of the United States or the Host 
Country, or (ii) a natural person who is a 
citizen of  
a country other than the United States (except 
as expressly provided in Article 10(B)) or the 
Host Country; 

 


